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June 18, 2001

Docket Clerk

Office of Chief Counsel Federal Railroad Administration

1120 Vermont Ave NW

Washington, D. C. 20590

Dear Madam:

Please accept this as petition for review per 49 CFR. Part 240, Subpart E – Disputes Resolution Procedures, 240.401 and 240.403.

Petitioner:

Dennis Lenell Smith

P. O. Box 88

Grosse Tete, LA 70740

Phone (225) 648-3246

Railroad:

Union Pacific Railroad

1416 Dodge Street

Omaha, NE 68179

This petition is being filed on behalf of Petitioner by:

Gil Gore, General Chairman 

BLE UP Southern Region

1448 Mac Arthur Ave.

Harvey, LA 70058

(504) 371-4760

The contact person for the UP Railroad is:

R. L. Pugmire

Director of Operating Practices

Union Pacific Railroad

4600 South Redwood Road

Salt Lake City, UT 84123
It is the Petitioner’s belief that the Railroad acted improperly when it suspended and subsequently revoked his certification and further that the UP Railroad’s citations were in violation of 49 CFR Part 240 and the applicable collective bargaining agreement as it pertains to discipline and investigations.

The following supporting documents are attached hereto and made a part of this petition:

1. Post-Hearing Notification of Certification Revocation notifying Petitioner that his certificate was revoked for a period of 30 days.

2. Transcript and exhibits presented at the January 3, 2001 hearing regarding this incident.



On December 14, 2000 Conductor Macera and Petitioner, Engineer D. L. Smith, were working as a crew on job LLL46 running in a southward direction between Livonia, Louisiana and Donaldsonville, Louisiana.  Their train consisted of 38 empties.  The crew encountered a stop indication at Control Point 77 located at mile post 77.  Petitioner and his crew stopped their train and contacted the dispatcher as required by the rules for permission to proceed.  After securing permission, the crew proceeded south past the stop indication moving at restricted speed.  The subsequently encountered a “red light” set up test placed in the curve south of mile post 77 by a Union Pacific managerial testing team consisting of MOP Goodridge, MOP Boocker, and MTO Troxclair.  The crew saw what they thought was a coke can reflection on the rail and Petitioner Smith immediately dimmed the headlights on his train in an attempt to identify the reflection on the right of way.  After dimming his headlight to get a better view, Petitioner and his crew realized the “red light” was a stop indication and Petitioner immediately placed his train into a full service reduction stopping 17 feet past the “red light”.  Petitioner did not place his train into emergency in order to avoid any possibility of a derailment due to slack action with his train in a curve.  Petitioner Smith and Conductor Macera were removed from service at that time.  A notice of combined hearing was issued by Union Pacific Railroad to cover both the company discipline and federal regulations regarding revocation of an engineer’s license.   

Petitioners Position:

It is Petitioner Smith’s position that Union Pacific’s decision to decertify him under the regulations was improper and unwarranted due to the following facts:

1. The Carrier committed a fatal procedural error when it did not comply with the Organizations request to examine and review the evidence to be presented at the investigation as provided in the discipline rule.  Specifically not providing the red light for independent evaluation at the Organization’s expense to establish the illumination of the device.  Not allowing this to take place and failure to provide the specific information during the hearing speak volumes regarding the Carrier’s intent to prohibit a full fair and impartial investigation of this matter.  This procedural failure was well documented on pages 18 through 24 in an objection by the Organization.


2. The crew was presented with a test that did not represent any railroad scenario they had ever seen.  Engineer Smith and Conductor Macera with almost 54 years of railroad operating employee experience between them had never been tested with this type of device before.  Additionally, MOP Boocker who was part of the testing team had never been tested with a device of this type during his 19 ½ year career as a locomotive engineer (See transcript page 42 lines 16-23).  MOP Goodridge, who was also a part of the testing team had admitted to being tested in this way “only once or twice” during his 29 ½  year career as a locomotive engineer (See Transcript page 123 lines 17-20).  All of the above named individuals have a combined operating employment experience of 103 years and have only seen this test preformed “one or two times”.  In fact, Smith and Macera had not even seen a device of this type with a red lantern in their 54 years of operating experience.  Additionally, all managers on the testing team (Boocker, Goodridge and Troxclair) were unable to tie the use of this device to any real life railroad situation during extensive cross-examination on this issue.  Specifically MOP Boocker testified to the following on page 64 of the transcript:
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What I'm trying to find out is what kind of - - what
kind of real life situation were we trying to mimic
with this red light?

(No audible response)

Other than - - and this is no offense to you. You
know I've got a lot of respect for you. It appears
to me and the organization that the only purpose
that red light serves is to get a crew pulled out of
service, because it serves no purpose in the real
world railroad industry. And that’s what - - that’s
what I'm trying to get answer to in here for Mr.
Smith, as his representative, is what purpose does
that light serve in the railroad industry to where a
crew would normally see it, view it, and have to
respond to it?

Well, for testing restricted speed at night, that's
the purpose of the light.






3.
The “(No audible response)” by MOP Boocker above speaks volumes regarding the applicability of this test in real life railroad situations.  His final response gave no senario other than “testing restricted speed”.  It is improper for Union Pacific to test crews regarding situations that they will never see during the course of even an abnormal tour of duty with apparatuses to which they have never been exposed.  On page 44 we have testimony from MOP Boocker which reads as follows:
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How? What would tell you it was a stop signal?

Well, it would just be my knowledge from past
practice.

Your knowledge.
Yes.

Would another person have the same knowledge you
would have?

That would - - I wouldn’t know.





It is clear by the above testimony that the only way MOP Goodridge would have known that the light in question was a stop signal from past practice and knowledge.  Since Engineer Smith and Conductor Macera had never seen this light in their 54 years of operating railroad experience, it is easy to understand why they had trouble distinguishing that the signal was a stop indication intended for their train.

4. The crew was alert and attentive to their duties on the night of the incident (See Goodridge testimony page 143 lines 11-24).  They properly identified and stopped for a absolute stop indication at the north end of White Castle siding .6 tenths of a mile prior to encountering the test.  They were traveling at restricted speed as required under the rule.  Per testimony, they were blowing for the crossings as required under the rules.  The most telling incident occurred when Engineer Smith dimmed his headlight on the lead locomotive in order to see what the red reflection was on the rail ahead of his train.  This fact is verified by Engineer Smith and Conductor Macera’s testimony.  It is verified in MOP Boocker’s testimony as well, beginning on page 55 lines 31-35 and 56 lines 1-5.  Engineer Smiths account of this action begins on page 211 of the transcript and reads as follows:
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Prior to coming up to the light in question, when

you dimmed your light, your headlight, why did you

dim your headlight?

Because I was trying to - - I could see a reflection
on the rail. I couldn’t determine out what it was.
And when I dimmed the light, I noticed it still was
lit. Then, I grabbed the full service reduction.

Did you and your conductor that’s charged have any
type of discussion in the cab, prior to the light?

Right prior before I dimmed the light, I asked
Markie what that was. He said he thinks it’s a
reflection. And when I - - then, I turned the light
dim. When the light went dim, I seen the light was
still glowing and I grabbed the full air reduction.

What did Markie think it was? Did he say?
A reflection or - - reflection is all he said.

So, with this light in question, it was hard to make
out what it was. Would that be correct?

Yeah. Because it just looked like - - it looked like
just something reflecting off the rail.





It is clear from the above testimony, that Engineer Smith and his crew saw what they thought was the reflection on the rail and even dimmed their headlight in an effort to identify what it was.  This crew got 17 feet by this device.  The delay and confusion attempting to identify the testing device caused that to happen.

5. Engineer Smith’s vision was hampered due to the “red light” being washed out by the headlights and ditch lights of the locomotive.  Per federal regulations, a locomotive must have 200, 000 candelera  in order to operate at night.  Per UP rules crews are allowed to operate with one headlight burning.  While no MOP at the investigation could testify to the candle power of a single headlight, it is safe to assume that UP would not have a rule that is in conflict with the federal regulations.  Therefore we have 4 headlights on the lead unit displaying over 800,000 candelera blasting into the night ahead of the locomotive (See testimony pages 74 – 78).  The Organization was denied the right to test the “red light” in question and no one at the hearing had any knowledge of the candle power of this light.  Testimony on page 78 reads as follows:
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Q:

Okay. So, when - - but - - let me be sure I get this
in the form of a question. Just so the reader of the
transcript can understand this, I'm going to ask you
- - run this scenario down and ask you if you agree
with me.

We have a locomotive that’s approaching this red
light with at least 800,000 candelera, according to
being in compliance with the federal regulations,
illuminating a device that’s a six-volt light that has
a three-inch wide lens and a two and three-quarter-
inch high lens, would that be a correct description
of the scenario that we had happening on the night?

Yes.
And you did indicate earlier that you saw the crew

either dim the headlight or turn the headlight out
for a brief moment, and then it came back on.

Yes.
Did you inquire of the crew when you were - - when
you met with them, or did you - - did you talk to

any of these crew members here?






We do however, know that it is a 6 volt lantern which is 9 inches in height and approximately 3 inches across.  The lens portion of the light is an omni directional and only 2 3/4 inches tall by about 3 inches across.  It is clearly unrealistic to expect a crew to properly identify such a device as a stop signal under the conditions on the night in question.



6. The device in question is not identified anywhere in the books given to UP employees as a stop signal.  This is established during MOP Goodridge’s testimony beginning on page 114 lines 12 – 27.  


7. The device in question is not issued to or used by any other employees on the railroad.  While there was some attempt to avoid the issue, testimony beginning on page 62 clearly establishes the absense of use of this type of device by MOW employees which reads as follows:
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Are they ever - - do any maintenance of way folks
have them that you know of?

I don’t know.

Well, would that be - - would a red light be used to
protect track? If you were going to try to protect a
piece of track at night, would a red light be
necessary?

It could be used. Yes.

Have you ever seen a maintenance of way man with
one of those lights?

No.

Would you say it’s, in fact, not common practice for
a maintenance of way man to have one of those
lights?

Whether they have it or not, I don’t know.

Well, if you’ve never seen one with it, then, the
assumption would be that it'd be - - it'd be
uncommon for one to have one.

I guess you can make that assumption.

Well, how long have you worked on the railroad, Mr.
Boocker?

Nineteen and a half years.

Okay. So, in 19 years, you haven’t seen any
maintenance of way men carry one of those lights.






Continued on page 63
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While Mr. Boocker on line 22 above tries to skirt the question regarding common practice on UPRR, it is clearly developed that in 19 ½ years of service as a locomotive engineer, he has never seen a MOW employee carry one of these devices, much less actually use one. This fact is also supported in MOP Goodridge’s testimony page 114 lines 27 – 36.


8. Carrier failed to provide an accurate distance account in the event recorder download.  MOP Goodridge even went so far as to indicate that the distance function of this tape was not available.  His testimony begins on page 131 and reads as follows:
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11 minutes. Excuse me. Would there be a distance
12 that this entire thing covered here, Mr. Goodridge -
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15 A: Well, on this particular download, I wasn’t able to
16 do that.

17

18 Q: Okay. The distance deal wasn’t functioning properly
19 or - -

20

21 A: No. This one just didn’t do it. This program that
22 we have for downloading won’t give us the distance.
23

24 Q: Okay. What type of download was this?

25

26 A: I believe it’s a PULSE download.

27

28 Q: So, the PULSE event recorder doesn’t give you the
29 ability - -

30

31 A: Well, let me state for the record. I didn’t do the
32 download. Mr. Boocker did the download, and it was

33 just sent to me. And all I did was run it off.





Clearly, there must be a reason for the Carrier to not present accurate records regarding the distance traveled during this event.  The excuse was at first that this particular download wasn’t able to produce the data and later switched to I didn’t do the download.  The fact that no exact distance was ever provided showing the distance traveled after the train brakes were applied leaves the record muddy and unclear.  


The managers involved in this test to the man, failed to identify the situation they were attempting to simulate with this field test.  They all seemed to ignore the issue of the fairness and practicality of the test.  MOP Goodridge’s testimony on page 144 of the transcript seemed to sum up their attitudes regarding this test and that reads as follows:
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Mr. Goodridge may feel that he and his coworkers are required to follow UP policy regarding this test, however there are locations on UP that realize the unfairness of this test and have refused to perform them.  Attached is a message put out by MTO R. L. Bradbury at Hearne, Texas regarding the red light test.  His message reads in peritent part:

“THIS IS IN RESPONSE TO THE WARNING LETTER PUT OUT:

LOCAL MANAGEMENT, AND WHEN I SAY THAT I MEAN THE MANAGERS HERE AT HEARNE, TX WILL NOT,  LET ME REPEAT THAT, WILL NOT USE THAT RED LIGHT.  WE WILL TEST YOU FAIRLY AND WILL TEST YOU USING PROCESSES THAT YOU WOULD NORMALLY SEE UNDER YOUR WORKING CONDITIONS (TORPEDOS, LIGHT OUTS, SHUNTS ETC).”

It would appear that Union Pacific has embarked on a testing process that is designed, for whatever reason, to fail employees on efficiency tests.  This becomes even clearer when you read MTO Bradbury’s retraction of the above notice (attached for your ready reference) where he recants his original thoughts on the red light tests.  Obliviously pressure was applied to him as a manager to prompt his clarification letter.  It appears to the Organization that UP has gotten itself into a catch-22 spot.  They have an unfair test on their hands that they must stand by in order to avoid paying lost earnings to all employees who have fallen victim to this unfair practice.  The decision by UP to continue this arcane type of field testing is based purely on economics.  

While this Committee realizes that arbitration hearings are not usually given credence in LERB decisions, please review exhibits N (PLB 6165 Award 8), O (SBA 235 Award 2435), P (PLB 6170 Award 63), and Q (First Division Award 24877) of the transcript of the hearing.  All of the listed awards speak directly to the need for fairness and validity in field testing.  This “basic fairness” standard must run as a thread throughout the industry and apply to all field testing regardless of the circumstances.  First Division Award 24877 is an on property award specifically on point in the instant case where Referee Weisman ruled in pertinent part:
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Considering all the above facts, Petitioner Smith requests the following remedies from the Locomotive Engineer Review Board:

1. Instruct Union Pacific to remove from their records all reference to the revocation of Petitioner’s license regarding this issue.

2. Instruct Union Pacific to pay Petitioner for all his lost earnings as a result of this incident. 







Respectfully Submitted,







Gil Gore
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